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Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of GB Corp (S.A.E.)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GB Corp (S.A.E.),
which comprise the consolidated financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the
consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Company’s management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and in the light of
the prevailing Egyptian laws, management responsibility includes, designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of Consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
management responsibility also includes selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. Except for what will be discussed in the basis for the qualified opinion below, we
conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and in the light of
the prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Basis of qualified opinion

We were not provided with the consolidated audited financial statements for the financial year’
ended December 31, 2024 for one of the associate companies (MNT — BV - Consolidated)
which is accounted for using the equity method, as the group owns approximately 44% of the
shares of this company, in order to verify the accuracy of calculating the group's share of the
profits resulting from this investment amounted to EGP 849,906,000 recorded by the company's

management during the year

Qualified Opinion

Except for the impact of the potential adjustments, the necessity of which could have been
determined if we were able to obtain the consolidated audited financial statements for the
financial year ending December 31, 2024, for one of the associate companies (MNT — BV -
Consolidated) in order to verify the accuracy of calculating the group's share of the profits
resulting from this investment amounted to EGP 849,906,000 recorded by the company's
management during the year, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of GB Corp
(S.A.E.) as at December 31, 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting
Standards and the Egyptian laws and regulations relating to the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

LT,

KPMG Hazem Hassan

KPMG Hazem Hassan
Publicedbliodeotistantd & Gonsitltass

Cairo February 27, 2025



(All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound)

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant, equipment and projects under construction
Assets right of use

Intangible assets and goodwill
Investment in associate

Investments in fair value through OCI
Long term notes receivables

Deferred tax assets

Investment property

Debtors and other debit balances
Subordinated Loan

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Assets held for sale

Inventories

Accounts and notes receivables

Investments in fair value through profit or losses
Debtors and other debit balances

Due from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity

Issued and paid in capital

Reserve for financial Solvency

General risk reserve

Legal reserve

Other reserves

Private risk reserve - Non banking financial service
Retained Earning

Net Profit for the year

Equity attributable to parent Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Loans

Long term Bonds

Long term notes payables and creditors
Right of use Liability

Warranty provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities

Loans, borrowings and overdrafts
Due to related parties

Bonds

Operating Lease Liabilities

Trade payables and other credit balances
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

GB Corp

(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at December 31, 2024

Note
No.

31 December 2024

Translation of consolidated financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

31 December 2023 Restated

(17)
(18-A)
(19)
(35)
(36-A)
(13)
(11-B)
(20$)
(15-A)
(35)

(44)
(12)
(14)
(36-B)
(15-B)
(34)
(16)

(21)
(43)
(42)
(23)
(24)
(41)

(25)

@n
(39

(18-B)
(29)
(11-B)

(29)
(11-A)
27
(34)
(39)
(18-B)
(28)

8193 201 5965 736
1115 089 530025
1052278 535 108
11 598 273 10 395 492
145 261 106 500
7610377 5382 482
111767 186 945
2 90 905
285 887 182 642
- 50 000
30112133 23 425 835
896 270 855 000
21134299 6366072
7581 323 4042 327
79 999 s
5446 827 2998 442
53286 347 598
7420 866 4504238
42612 870 19 113 677
72725 003 42539512
1 085 500 1 085 500
122 655 7612
1359 E
710 245 562 734
7 890 066 4568 492
20393 20 393
12 680 163 11 657 492
2928 121 1 890 727
25 438 502 19 792950
1978 417 1 362 958
27 416 919 21155 908
6835 835 4563 174
120 000 200 000
384 389 288 593
1123775 478 235
7070 7070
401974 333 053
8873 043 5870 125
702 803 411 424
744 120 344262
15 572 866 7 674 496
2058 68
80 000 80 000
211359 117323
19 121 835 6 885 906
36 435 041 15513 479
45 308 084 21 383 604
72725 003 42539512

* The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements, and to be read therewith.

Group Chief Financial Officer and
Executive Board Member
Abbas Elsayed

Ve

- ' v

**Audit Report "attached"

Executive Board Member

Nader Ghabbour
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GB Corp

Translation of consolidated financial statements

(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
for the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

3

originally issued in Arabic

(All amonnts in thousand Egyptian Found) Note No. 31 December 2024 31 Di::::;rdzozs
Operating revenue (5) 53 969 539 28 317 230
Operating cost (5) (43454 917) {21 432 690)
Gross profit (%) 10 514 622 6 884 540
Other income (6) 505 593 523 052
Selling and marketing expenses (37 (1815019) (1027 837)
General and administrative expenses 37 (3 028 632) (2 402 802)
Other expenses 6] {240 108) (337 001)
Expected credit losses ) (115 616) (2659
Operating Profit 5820 840 3637293
Finance costs (Net) (D (2 689 349) (2465 024)
Gain from investment in associate (35) 867 641 1066 090
(Loss) / Gain from sale & Revaluation of investment associate - { 4 425)
Net profit for the year before income tax ' 3999132 2233934
Income tax (11-C) (939 239) {422 406)
Net profit for the year after income tax 3 059 893 1811 528
Attributable to:
Shareholder's of the parent company 2928 121 1 890 727
Non-controlling interests 131 772 (79199
3059893 1811 528
2.609 1.682

Basic earning per share (EGP/Share) (10)

* The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements, and to be read therewith.

-4
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GB Corp
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the financial vear ended 3‘1 December 2024

(All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound) Nl\?:e 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Net profit for the year after income tax 3059 893 1 811528
Other comprehensive income items
Foreign currency translation difference 3729319 1222124
Modificafion of fixed assets cost (45-1-1) 937 (13 368)
Tatal other comprehensive income for the year before income tax 3719940 1208 756
Income tax related to other comprehensive income (11-B) 3455 1320
Total other comprehensive income for the year after income tax 3723395 1210076
Total comprehensive income for the year 6783 288 . 3021 604
Comprehensive income is attribuiable to:
Shareholder's of the parent company 6 249 696 2946 857
Non-controlling interests 533592 74 747

6783 288 3021 604

* The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements, and to be read therewith.

-5-
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(All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound)

Net profit for the year before tax

Adjustments for:

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization for the year

Provisions movements

Impairment losses on current assets

Interest income

Loss from sale & Revaluation of investment associate
Gain from sale of property, plant, equipment and assets held for sale
Tmpairment on fixed assets

Gain from investment in associate

Unrealized foreign cuurency exchange losses

Changes in:

Inventories

Accounts and notes receivables

Debtors and other debit balances

Due from related parties

Due to related parties

Payment rent for asset right of use
Proceeds from Joans and borrowings
Trade payables and other credit balances
Cash provided from operating activities
Provisions used

Income tax paid

Dividends distrbutions paid for employees and Board of Directors

Net cash provided from operating zctivities

Cash flows froen investing activities

GB Corp
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

Translation of Consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic

Payment for acquisition of property, plant, equipment aud projects under constructions

Payment to acquire non controlling interest
Proceeds from sale of shares from subsidaries
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets

Interest income received

Payment under investment

Payment for acquisition of investments in subsidiaries

Paid for other investments and associates

Proceeds from sale of property, plant, equipment and assets held for sale

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Bonds

Dividends paid - Shareholders
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Long-Tern notes payable

Interest expense paid

Net cash Provided from / (used in) financing activities

Net Tucrease In cash and cash equivalents

Cash ard cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Eifect of movements in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Ty

d financial

* The accompanying nctes form an integral part of these c

Note No. 31 December 2024 31 December 2023 Restated
3999132 2233934
m 2682 401 1295 592
(17,18,19) 1138459 531403
(29) 237937 97712
205 904 5495
()] (484 619) {330691)
- 4 425
{6) {132247) (37 741)
- 375 486
{867 641) (1 066 090)
616 304 77 699
7595 630 3188224
(13 586 959) (2204 041}
(5737127 (3 248 243)
(1 585831) 957 158
(256 287) (185 199)
1990 (101 671)
{85962} (67 687)
3840496 1 844 623
11960244 1 060761
2146 192 1243920
(49797) (45 082)
(391 828) (328 651)
( 138 483) {45 560)
1566084 824 627
(3171932) (2 055 955)
- {7 60C}
- 1032134
(25 520) (7431)
592112 184412
(79 999) -
(187 259) -
(516 591) -
313 109 254 341
(3 076 080) { 599 459)
(80000} (241 538)
(217 000) -
6330535 1412 503
95796 (91 724)
{2711 478) (1343 858)
3417853 (269 617
1907 857 (44489)
4 506 907 4098 184
1007785 453 212
16 7422 549 4506 907
ta , and to be read therewith,
8.
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
QOriginally issued in Arabic
GB Corp (S.AE)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)
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1- Background of the Group

GB Corp S.A.E is an Egyptian joint stock Company “The Company™ incorporated on July 15,1999 under the
name of GB Capital for Trading and Capital Lease and under Law No. 159 of 1981, and was registered in the
commercial register under No. 3422, Cairo.

Based on the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting held on April 26, 2007, it has been
agreed to change the Company’s name to be GB Auto. This amendment was registered in the commercial
register on May 23, 2007.

Based on the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting held on March 26, 2023, it has been
agreed to change the Company’s name to be GB Corp S.A.E This amendment was registered in the
commercial register on May 7, 2023.

The Company is domiciled in the Industrial Zone — Abou Rawash Kilo meter 28 Cairo — Alexandria Desert
Road, Arab Republic of Egypt.

The Company and its subsidiaries (will be referred to as “the Group”) main activities include trading,
distributing and marketing of all transportation means including heavy trucks, semi-trucks, passenger cars,
buses, mini buses, micro buses, agriculture fractors, crans, mechanical tools equipment for soil movement
and motors with their different structures and types whether locally manufactured and imported new and used
ones and trading in spare parts, accessories whether locally manufactured or imported and tires for vehicles
and equipment whether locally manufactured and tires for vehicles and equipment whether locally
manufactured or imported. The Company also undertakes import and export activities, selling locally
manufactured and imported products for cash, on credit or through finance leasing and microfinance. Also
trade in all goods including light trucks and sale by instalments and provide setvices of factoring and
nonbanking financial services. The factoring services intended to buy existing and future rights of sellers of
goods and services and provide related services.

The major shareholders of the Company are the family of Dr. Raouf Ghabbour who collectively owns 63.38%
and El Olayan Saudi Investment Company owns 7.04% and The Miri Strategic Emerging Markets Fund LP
company owns 5.10% and other investors owns 24.48% of the Company’s shares as at December 31, 2024.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
February 27, 2025.

2~ Basis of preparation of conselidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the updated Egyptian
Accounting Standards (EAS) and the related Egyptian laws and regulations.

3- Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian Pounds which is the Group’s functional
currency.

d- Use of judgement and estimates

- In preparing the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards
(EAS), management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These
estimates and assumptions are based on past experience and various factors. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

-9-
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

GB Corp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)
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- Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

- The recognition of the change in accounting estimates in the period in which the change in estimate
occurs, if the change affects only that period, or in the period of change and future periods if the change
affects both. .

A- Measurement of fair value

- The fair value of financial instruments determines based on the market value of a financial instrament or
similar financial instruments at the date of the financial statements without deducting any estimated future
costs of sale. The financial asset values are determined at current prices for the purchase of those assets,
while determining the value of financial liabilities at current prices, which could be settled by those
liabilities.

- In the absence of an active market t0 determine the fair value of financial instruments, the fair value is
estimated using various valuation techniques, taking into consideration the transactions price that has
recenily or be guided by the current fair value of other instruments which is substantially similar, Or the
use of discounted cash flow or any other evaluation method that leads to results that can be relied upon
it.

- When using the discounted cash flow method as a way for the evaluation, the future cash flows are
estimated based on the best estimates of management. And determined the discount rate used in the
prevailing market price at the date of the financial statements of financial instruments are similar in nature
and terms.

5- Operating Segments
- The Group has the following four operational segments, which are its reportable segments to top
management. These segments offer different products and services and are managed separately
because they require different technology and marketing sirategies.
- The following summary describes the operations for each reportable segment:

Reportable Operations
segment

Passenger car  Trading, distributing, and marketing for all kinds of passenger cars,
whether locally manufactured or imported.
Buses and Trading, distributing, and marketing for all kinds of heavy trucks, semi-
trucks trucks, buses, minibuses, micro buses, agriculture tractors, whether locally
manufactured or imported.
2 & 3 Wheels  Trading, distributing, and marketing for all kinds of 2 & 3 Wheels,
whether locally manufactured or imported.
Financial non- Providing services of investments and real estate financing and insurance
Banking and provides services of factoring and financial non-banking services.
Services And operation and finance lease and microfinancing and factoring services
intended to buy existing and future rights of sellers of goods and services
and provide related services and selling the locally and imported goods and
products by cash or on credit and trade in all kinds of goods such as light
transportation and selling it by installments,
Other Trading spare parts, and its accessories whether locally manufactured or
Operations imported, tires for vehicles and equipment whether Jocally manufactured
or imported and exported.

-10-
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GB Comp (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of Consolidated financial statements
Criginally issued in Arabic

5-Operating Segments(Continued}

A-Total Revenue

1-Perecentage of total Revenue by sectors

Passenger car

Buses and trucks

2 & 3 Wheels

Financial non-Banking Services

Other Operations

2-Percentape of revennes from foreign operations out of total revenues

Passenger car

2 & 3 Wheels
B- Sectors results

Passenger car

Buses and trucks

2 & 3 Wheels

Financial non-Banking Services

Other Operations

C-Assets

Passenger car

Buses and trucks

2 & 3 Wheels

Financial non-Banking Services

Other Operations

D- Liabilities

Pagsenger car

Buses and trucks

2 & 3 Wheelers

Financial non-Banking Services

Other Operations

December 31, 2024 Yo December 31, 2023 %
37523 349 £9.53% 17 244 504 60.89%
3984793 7.38% 2324404 8.21%
2138442 4.05% 1921730 6.7%%
6904 571 12.79% 4463221 15.76%
3368384 6.24% 2363371 8.35%

53 969 539 100% 28 317230 100%

December 31, 2024 % December 31, 2023 %o

10 867 511 28.96% 5535486 32.10%
810 289 37.03% 1067 521 55.55%

December 31, 2024 % December 31, 2023 %
6569 648 62.48% 4064 921 59.04%
1075 861 10.23% 564 322 8.20%

467 779 4.45% 385026 5.59%
1457 257 13.86% 1071 474 15.56%
944 077 8.98% 798 797 11.61%
10 514 622 100% 6 884 540 100%

December 31, 2024 % December 31, 2023 %
21 192 066 29.14% 5838671 13.73%
16974 016 23.34% 7521770 18.62%
3199500 4.40% 3627779 8.53%
18 159 433 24.97% 15094 948 35.48%
13 199 588 18.15% 10 056 344 23,64%

72725003 100% 42 539512 100%

December 31, 2024 %o December 31, 2023 Yo
16 582 759 36.60% 6163754 28.82%
14 040 975 30.95% 5324517 24.90%

335280 0.74% 406 288 1.90%
11 037 049 24.36% 7313334 34.20%
3312021 7.31% 2175671 10.18%

45308 084 100% 21383 604 100%
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GB Cerp (SAE)

Translation of Consclidated financial statemants
Originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the cansclidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024

{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyplian Pounds unless atherwise stated)

5-Operating Segments (Continued)

E-Reconcillations of Information on reportable segments to financial statements according to EASs

Revenues

Total revenues ¢f operating sagments

Elimination of revenue betwaan group inter-segment
Consoclidated Revenue

Segments result

Gross profit of eperating sagment

Elimination of grass profit betwean group inter-segment
Consolidated Gross Profit

Assets

Total assets of operating seagments

Elimination of assets bat group inter-segment
Total Cansolidated Assets

Liabilitles

Total Liabilitles of operating segments.

Elimination of Liabilities betwsen group intar-segment
Total Consclidated Liabilitles

F-Other proflt or loss amounts

Finance income
Interest expense and Bank Charges
Depraclation and Amortization

Finance income
Interest expense and Bank Charges
Dapreclation and Amoriization

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
59 860 780 30413736
(5991 241) {2 096 506)
53969539 26 317 230
10733 027 B 946 685
{218 405) { 62 145)
10 514 622 6 884 540
112 204 386 76 802 482
(39 479 284) {34 247 264)
T2725 002 42 585 218
658 098 091 38572508
{22 780 008) (17 188 904)
45 308 083 21 383 604

Total reportable

Ellmination between group Total consalidated

segment December 31, 2024
4384 619 - 484 619
(3385 903) 503 502 {2 382 401)
1138 455 - 1138 452
Total raportable Total consolidated
segment Eliminatian between group December 31, 2623
330 691 - 330 691
{1592 464) 205 872 (1296 592)
531 403 - 531 403
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GB Corp (S.AE)

Nolss to lhe consolidated financial statsments for tha financial yaar ended Dacember 31, 2024
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otharwisa stalad)

T:Flnance Costs {Nat}

Interesiincoms
Inlarest income on Installmant salss
Total Financs Incoma

Interest axpenss
Faralgn exchanga loss
‘Total Finance Cost

Nst Flnance Gest

8= Othar Expanses

Provisions

8+ Expacted Credit Losses on Profit and Losses

sradilloss of & Notes i

Expacted cradit loss of due from related pariles

Expacied cradit loss of Deblors & Other debll balances

Expacled Cradil Losa of Cash and cash equivalant

Nota No, Decombar 31, 2024 Oecambar 31, 2023

@

450578 313 006
34041 18785
434618 330 691
(2882401) {1206 502)
(291587) {1499 123)
[3 173 988) (2795 715)
12 689 3439) (2 465 024)

Decomber 31, 2024

bar 31,2023 Rastated

{240 108) {337 001}
{240 108) {33780}
Decambar 31, 2024 Dscambar 34, 2023
28474 (37 765)
72435 22809
8898 15237
( 886) 2568

115616 28650
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic
GB Corp (S.AE)
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown In Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

10-Eamings per share

A~ EPS in consolidated net profit
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net consolidated profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares issued during the year.

The Board of Directors of The Company prepared a dividend proposal until it is approved by The General Assembly of The
Company.

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Net profit for the year {parent company share) 2928 121 1890727
Employees share of profit* { 76 549) { 48 158)
Board of directors bonus* {19 018) {17 183)

2 332 556 1 325 386

Divided by:
Waeighted average number of crdinary shares issued 1085 500 1 085 500
Basic profit eamings per share/ EGP 2,609 1.682
11-Income tax
A-lncome tax liabilities

December 31, 2024 December 31,2023 Restated
Balance at 1 January 344 262 324 089
Taxes paid during the year {391 828) { 328 651)
Current income tax during the year (Note 11-C} 791 636 348 824
Balance at the end of the year 744 120 344 262

-15-
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ranslation of consolidated financlal statements
Oriqinally {ssued in Arable
GB Corp (S.AE)
Nates ta the cansclidated financial statements for the finansial year ended December 31, 2024
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thausand Egyptian Pounds unless othenvise stated)

11-Income tax {Continued)

B-Defarred tax assets and liabllitles {Continued)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Some deferred tax assets have net been recognised because it is not certaln confirmation te use that tax benefitin the future

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Expected craditloss for accounts and notes 76819 74 380
recelvables
Expected credit loss for other debit balances. 30 652 20831

Liability for temporary differences related to investments In subsidiaries, assoclates and joint venture was nct recognized because the group controls the timing of
reversal of the related temporary differancas and given that they will net reverse in the foresesable futurs,

€-1 Income tax expense

December 3, 2024 Decembaer 31,2023

Restated
Currant incoma tax (Note 11-A) {791 6386) { 348 B24)
Deferred tax — (Note 11-3) {147 553) {73582)
[ncome tax for the year {939 239} { 422 406)

C-2 Adjustment for preparing Income Tax Expanse

December 31, 2024 December 31,2023

Net profit far the year befare income tax 3999 132 2233934
Income tax rate accarding to the law 22.5% 22.5%
Income tax calculated according to the tax law 895 805 502 635
Adjustments 39435 . (80229)
Income tax as shown in the income statement 939239 422 408
Effactive tax rate 23.5% 18.9%
D-Amoaunts recagnized in OCI
December 31, 2024 December 31,2023
Befora Tax Taxes After Tax Befora Tax Taxes Affer Tax
Forelgn Currency transfation difference 3728319 - 3728319 1222124 - 1222124
revaluation surplus of fixed assets cost {9379) 3455 {5924) (13368) 1320 {12048)
3719 940 3455 3723385 1208756 1320 1210076
12-Inventories
D bar 31, 2024 December 31, 2022
Goods In transit 5757 717 1306 965
Cars, buses and trucks 9491858 2576045
Raw material and car components 2985 523 1083733
Spare parts for sale 1827043 958 374
" Work in progress 1224280 397112
Tires 202 144 300
Qils 79 1273
Total 21289702 § 441302
* Impairment of inventory { 155403} (75730)
Net 21134299 § 366072

* The formatlon and ravarsal of Invantory Impairment are chargad In cost of zales at statement of profit [oes,

"7
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GB Comp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the financial year ended Cecember 31, 2024
{In tha notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egypllan Pounds unless othenwise stated)
13-Long term notes receivables
Dacsmber 31, 2024 Dacembar 31, 2023
Long-term rotes receivable * 10 346197 6 596 222
Interest Income on Installment sales {2 615 280) (1 098 666)
Net present value for [ong-term notes
recelvable 7733017 5497 556
Expected credit loss for long-term notes
receivable (123 840) {115074)
Nat 7610 377 5382482

* It reprasents the value of notes recelvables ralated to opecating lease activity and other finaneing activities with a repaymment for more than one yzar.

1d-Accounts and notes receivables

Dacembar 31, 2024 Dacambar 31, 2023
Total notes receivable 7 044 670 3805 621
Unamortized interest (2 615 280) (1088 666)
Net present value for short-term notes
recolvable 4420 390 2706 955
Trade receivable 3369 804 1550 874
Total 7799199 4 257 829
Expected credit loss for accouats and
notes receivable balances (217678) {215 602)
Net 7 581 323 4 042 327

The following table represents tha Expected credit loss for accounts and notes receivables according to the expected losses model on

December 31, 2024:

1-Non Sanking -Financlal Services

Stage 1:

Expected credit Stage 2: Lifetime ECL

Stage 3: Lifatime ECL with

losses over 12 th“ilr: n:i:;eﬂit Impaired credit Total
months P
Aceount & netes receivables 1% 189 875 209 084 284 384 11 683 343
Deduct:
Expected credit loss for accounts and
nales recelvable balances {38 183) {19 187} (143 654) {202 034)
Net 11 150 682 189 897 140 730 11 481 309
2- The sector of passenger and transport vehicles, buses, twe- and three-wheelers vehicles and cther operations
. Expecied credit loss of
The Balance The percentage of account Net
expected losses
& notes recelvables
Notes Recsivable 559325 3.29% [ 18 979) 540 346
Trade recelvables 2856182 2% { 64 582) 2791570
From 1ta30 260 295 2.5% {6510) 253785
From 31 ta 60 81484 6% (51589) 76325
From 61 to 90 22187 19% {4170) 18 017
From 91 to 120 4938 32% (1577) 3361
More than 12¢ 65392 59% { 38 405) 26 987
Total 3 848 773 [ 139 382} 3710 391

* The percentage vary according to the nature of each sector of the group and the payment method nature of customers

{ Bank purchase order customers - Governmental customers - Credit customers - Insurance & Foreign warranty customers - Other

customers)

18-
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Translation of conolidated financial statements
Qriginally issued in Arabic
GB Comp (S.A.E)
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

15-Debtors and other debit balances
A-Long term debtors and other debit balance

Decembher 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Excess in securitization operations * 285 887 182 642
285 887 182 642

* This amount represents the Net Present Value of Reserve related to the securitization transactions to be collected back at the end of the
securitization process based an the special condition included in each Information Memo and the financial model.

B-Debtors and other debit balances

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Advance payments to suppliers 1616 458 971926
Withhalding tax 780197 487 668
Value added fax 413 647 50 696
Accrued interest 38786 146 279
Accrued revenue 462 425 152 399
Letters of credit 1118 470 442 262
Prepaid expanses 416 374 196 206
Security deposifs with others 31 416 16217
Letters of guarantee 237 521 208 238
Staff loans and custodies 47 480 90938
Other debit balances 413 087 326 328
Customs dutles 7185 1869
Total 5 583 056 3091024
zgﬁrﬂ:‘isgﬁn loss for debtor and other (136 229) (92562)
Net 5 445 827 2998 442
16-Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2024 Decemnber 31, 2023
Time deposits 3 468 453 931083
Cash an hand and In banks 3 660 802 3401510
Checks under collections 211284 54103
Treasury bills 82000 120 231
f:::;:: Cash equivalents According to 7 422 549 4 506 907
E;:;cizlt::tcredit loss for Cash and cash (1683) {2669)
Net 7 420 866 4 504 238

-10-
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GB Corp (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

18- Assets and Liabilities Right Of Use
A- Right Of Use Asset

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2023
Addition during the year
Disposals during the year
Effect of exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2023

Balance at January 1, 2024
Addition during the year
Disposals during the year
Effect of exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2024

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Accumulated depreciation at January 1, 2023
Depreciation during the year

Disposals during the year

Effect of exchange rates

Accumnulated depreciation at December 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation at January 1, 2024
Depreciation during the year

Disposals during the year

Effect of exchange rates

Accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2024
Net Book value at December 31, 2024

Net Book value at December 31, 2023

Land & building Total
633 476 633 476
243 948 243 948

(53 107) (53107
71 105 71105
895422 895 422
895 422 895 422
794 220 794 220
(26 559} (26 559)
185 760 185 790
1848 873 1848 873
201941 201 941
148 578 148 578
(12 576) (12 576}
27 454 27 454
365 397 365 397
365 397 365397
305 438 305 433
{ 14 693) (14 693)
77 642 77 642
733 784 733 784
1115 089 1115 089
530 025 530 025

The right of use is represented in renting warehouses and showrooms, which are used in the activities of the group

companies.

B- Operating Lease Liabilities

Total un-settled lease contracts liabilities
Interests on lease contracts
Net present value of total liabilities on right of use

Divided into:
Current portion of Jease contracts liabiliies
Non-current portion of lease contracts liabilities

December 31, 2024

December 31,2023

2298283 1130737
(963 149) (535 17%)
1 335 134 595 558
211 359 117323
1123775 478 235
-21-
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic
GB Corp (S5.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended Degember 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

19- Intanglble assets and goodwil

Goodwill Compufter software Rﬂ"_f::;;:;: Total
Caost
Balance at 1 January 252780 78179 177375 508 334
Adjustments or: beginning halance 184 635 ° - - 134 638
Balance at 1 January Restated - Translation Differences 437415 179 177 375 692 969
Additions during the year 187 259 15 520 - 212 779
Transfer from PUC - 40 395 - 40 395
Changes impact in the trenstation of foreign entities 290 052 - - 290 052
Balance at December 31, 2024 914 726 144 094 177375 1236 195
Accumulated amortization
Balanee at 1 Jannary - 63 261 94 600 157 361
Amortization during the year - 20 144 5912 26 056
Balance at December 31, 2024 - 83 405 100 §12 183917
Net Bogk value at December 31, 2024 914 726 60 620 76 863 1052278
Net Book value at December 31, 2023 437415 14 918 82 7715 535108
Goodwill

On September 8, 2008, GB Corp (GB Auto Previously) fully acquired the shares of GB for financial lease {S.A.E) which its
business is financial leasing wilh all ils fields, and the acquisition resulted in goodwill amounted to EGP 1 million.

During November 2010, the Group entered inte 50% investment as a joint venture agreement in Almajmoa Alalamia Litjjarat
Alsalarat (GK), in Jordan, to acquire the existing business in Irag, the joint veniure agreement gives the group the power to
govemn the financial and operating policies of (GK} and as a result of this investment the group recognized a goodwill with an
Amount USD 14 millicn equivalent to EGP 713 million . During 30 September 2021 increased its stake in Almajmoa
Alatamia Litijaret Alsalarat (GK) frem 50% (o 83.33% .

On October 26, 2017 the group fully acquired the shares of Egyptian Intemational Maintenance and cars Manufacturing
Company EIAC (5.A.E), and the acquisition resulted in goodwill amounted EGP 2.8 million.

During the second quarter of 2024, through a parinership agreement, the group invested 64.16% In Superior Intematianal
For Autometive Trading company for the purpose of acquiring the existing car activity in Jordan. This agreement gives the
group rights that enable it to control the financial and operational policies of Superior Intemational For Autometive Trading
company. This investment resulted in Recognition of goadwill amounting to USD 3.9 million eguivalent to 197.6 million
Egyptian pounds and that is based on preliminary study in light of the cument information available to date.

Business Combination

Tha falr valuss of tha [dentifiabla axsats and Fablities of Suparlor

Fair value racogalzad on

international at the dats of acqulsition were: acquisition fn
Non-current azzsts

Proparty and equipmant 47 629
Current azuats

Inveniorias 1307345
Trade and othar racstvablea 17 930
Cash and ¢ash aquivalants 579 000
Currant (labilitles

Trada and cthar payables [ 842 490)
Qther financial labiitias (717 693)
Total [dentiflabla pat angats at fair value 391 M}
Purchase eonsldaration 379 cO0

Goodwlll resulting from the acquisition

Goodwill is allocated as presented below:
Iranq Pagsenger cars- Sales

Financial leasing activity

After Sale service- Passenger cars

Jordan Passenger cars- Sales

167 259

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

713235 248 910
1000 1 000
2870 2 870

197 621 -

214 726 152 T80

2.
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Origipally issued in Arablg
GB Corp (5.A.E)
Notes to the consglidated financial statemments for the financial year ended Decamber 31, 2024
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless atherwise stated)

19-Intangible assets and goodwill (Continued)

The Company assesses annually the impairment of goodwill at December 31, to ensure whether the carrying amount of
the goodwill is fully recoverable, uniess there are indicators required to test the impairment through the year,

" Impairment of goodwill is assessed based on value in use, which is determined using the expected discounted cash flows

based on estimated business plan approved by the Board of Directors covering five years' period. The management is
preparing these estimated business plan based on the financial, operating and market performance in the previous years
and its expectations for the market development.

*|

Right to use trademark
©On June 28, 2007, GB Corp { GB Auto Previously} fully acquired the shares of Caire Company for Personal
Transportation Industries (Citi) by purchasing 49.03%, which was owned by the minority, at a value of 210 million
Egyptian pounds, in return for obtaining shares from the issuance of shares to increase the capital of the company.
GB Corp ( GB Auto Previously). Based on this acquisition, the company obtained the right to use the trademark of one of
the company's main suppliers related to the activity of the 283 wheleers Sector, at an amount of 177 million Egyptian
pounds on the date of acquisition.

2(-Investments property

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Balance at | January - 90 905
Balance at the end of the year - 90 908

During the fourth quarter of 2024, Investments property amounted EGP 90¢ 905 thousand were transferred to fixed assets under the land and buildings category.

21-Issued and paid in capital

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Authorized capital (5 000 000 000 shares with par valus EGP 5 000 000 5000 000
[ each)
i e
Issued and paid capital {1 085 500 ()0 shares with par 1 085 500 1 085 500

value of EGP 1 each)

On August 31, 2014, the Board of Directors according to the delegation of the extra ordinary assembly meeting held on
June 27, 2013, has decided unanimously to increase the Company's issued capital with the par value in the limit of the
authorized capital with an amount of EGP 6 444 645 divided on 6 444 645 shares with a par value of 1 EGP /share,
whally allocated to ESOP system which is applied by the Company, resulted in an issued capital of

EGP 135 337 545 after the increase divided on 135 337 545 shares with a par value of 1 EGP/share, and this increase
financially fully paid from the special reserve balance and annctated in the commercial register

at December 31, 2014,

(Capital Increase)

on February 4, 2015, the extra ordinary general assembly meeting, has agreed to increase the Company's authorized
capital from 400 million EGP to 5 billion EGP and to increase the Company's issued capital from

EGP 135 337 545 to be EGP 1 095 337 545 with an increase of EGP 960 000 000 to be divided on
1 095 337 545 shares with a par value of 1 EGP each. (In additional to issuance cost of 1 pts./share), and that increase to
be fully allocated for the favor of old shareholders each according to their share in the Company's issued capital , and it is
agreed to use the subscription right separately from the original share, with the Company's issued capital increase to be
paid either cash and/or using due cash debts for the subscriber by the Company according to their contribution share.

This increase was subscribed by an amount of EGP 958 672 188 (EGP 473 225 502 in Cash and EGP 485 446 686
covered through the outstanding balances due to shareholders) divided on 958 672 188 shares with a par value of

1 EGP each to be the total capital issued and fully paid after the increase equals to EGP 1 094 009 733, it has been
annotated in the commercial register at May 31, 2015.

The Extraordinary General Assembly unanimously agreed on June §, 2022 to excute the company’s treasury shares
amounting to 8,508,733 shares and to reduce the capital by the amount of these shares, so that the Issued and paid-up
capital of the company after the reduction becomes 1,085,500,000 Egyptian pounds, and it was approved by the General
Authority for Investment on 3/8/2022 It was annoted in the Commercial Register on August 15, 2022,

Misr for Central Clearing Depsitory & Registry accepted the implementation of the capital reduction decision on
Qclober 26, 2022.

23~
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabig
GB Corp (S.AE)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyplian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

22-Treasury Shares

On March 1, 2020, the Board of Directors of the company decided to purchase treasury shares with an maximum amount of 10 000 000
shares of the company, which represents 0.914% of the total shares of the company, through the open market, and that implementation
be carried out from the session of March 2, 2020 and Until April 2, 2020, or until the full amount is executed , with the same price of the
security during trading sessions in the execution period in light of the amendment issued in Article {51} of the registration rules issued by
the Board of Directors of the Financial’Supervisory Authority Ne. 27 of 2020 on February 29, 2020 And that works in it as of the date of its
issuance, as well as the statement posted on the announcement screens on the Egyptian Stock Exchange on March 1, 2020 regarding the
exceptional procedures for companies whose securities are listed on the stock exchange wishing fo purchase treasury shares.

During the period from March 3,2020 to March 18, 2020 ,The company has purchased 10 million sharas with a total value of 19.570 million
Egyptian pounds. The amount of 10 million pounds has been recorded as freasury shares representing the nominal value of the share.
The difference between the purchase cost and the nominal value of the amount of 9.570 million Egyptian pounds has been recorded in the
ather reserves (Note 23).

During the year of 2020, the company sold 2 million shares with a total value of 8 750 Thousand Egyptian pounds, resulting in a reduction
of 2 million Egyptian pounds. This represents the nominal value of the share, and the difference between the sale value and the nominal
value of 4 750 thousand Egyptian pounds was recorded within the other reserves .

During the period from January 1, 2021 to March 31, 2021, the company sold 8 million shares with a total value of 30 232 thousand
Egyptian pounds, resulting in a reduction of 8 million Egyptian pounds. This represents the nominal value of the share and the difference
between the sale value and the face value of 22 232 Thousand Egyptian pounds among other reserves (Note 23)

During the period from November 28, 2021 to December 21, 2021The company has purchased 8 509 733 shares with a total value of
38 681 thousand Egyptian pounds. The amount of § 510 Thousand Egyptian pounds has been recorded as treasury shares representing
the nominal value of the share. The difference between the purchase cost and the nominal value of the amount of 30 172 thousand
Egyptian pounds has been recorded in the other reserves (Note 23),

On June &, 2022 the Exdraordinary Generai Assembly unanimously approved the execution of the company's treasury shares, amounting
fo 8508733 shares, and the reduction of the capital by the amount of these shares, so that the issued and paid-up capital of the
company after the reduction became 1 085 500 000 Egyptian pounds, and it was approved by the General Authority for investment on
August 3, 2022 and anncted in commerclal register on 15 August 2022 |

23-Legal reserve

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Balance at 1 January 562 134 533 542
Transferred to legal reserve 147 511 54 437
Change of non controlling interest -
without change in control (25 245)
Balance at the end of the year 710 245 562 734

In accordance with the Companies Law No 159 of 1981 and the Company’s articles of association, 5% of annual net profit is {ransferred to
the legal reserve, after the approval of the company's resulis by the General Assembly Meeting. Upon the recommendation of the board,
the Company may stop such fransfer when the legal reserve reaches 50% of the issued capital, The legal reserve is not eligible for
distribution to shareholders.

The legal reserve includes an amount of EGP 74 773 thousand related to the parent Company, the rest of the balance represents the
legal reserve of the Group's Companies

24-
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ransiatfon of consolldated financlal statements.
DOriginally issued in Arable
GB Corp (S.AE)
Notes ta the cehsolidated financial statements for tha financlal year ended December 31, 2024
{In the: notes all amounts ame shown in Thousand Egyplian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

24-Other reserves

E£sor
FEBTEY e SERETI ST
Balance as at January 1, 2024 Restated 3517730 88 882 57789 904 041 4 568 492
Foreign cumency differences 3397 498 - - - 3327 498 .
Modification effect of fixed assets cost e - (5529 - {5 024)
Balance at December 31, 2024 6845278 35 582 51 855 304 041 7 890 065

*Shars preinivm

The share premium represented in the difference between the amount paid and nominal valus for issued shares and issuance cost is deducted from it, The share pramium was transferred to bath legal reserva and speclal reserve
aceording to Law No. 150 af 1881,

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Share premiumn a04 041 904 041

The special reserve rmpresented In tha transfered amaunt from the net share premium in 2007 Jess the amount transfaed ta the jagal mseve,

During 2011, the special reserve was reduced by an amount of EGP 2 090 thousand which rapresents tha difference between {reasury shares purchasing cost amounted to EGP 3 087 thousand and the neminal valua of thesa shazes
amounted to EGP 107 thousand which was written off during 2012.

During 2012, the special reserve was reduced by an amount of EGP 2 114 thausand which represents the differances batwean treasury shares purchasing cost amounted ta EGP 6 365 thousand and its reselling price amounted to EGP
4 261 thousand.

The shate premium was reduced by an amount of 9 570 thousand EGP ,which represent the difference betwean cost of purchasing treasury shares during the year 2020 wilh an amount of
18 $70 thousand EGP and the nominal valus of shares of 10 milllon EGP.

The share f has also been | d by an amount of 4,750 thousand Egyptlan pounds, rep g the differance Haty the sale prica of treasury shares during the yaar 2020 by an amount of 6,750 thausand Egyptian
pounds and tha nominal valua of the shares of 2 million Egyptian pounds,

** The balance represents an employee benefit plan based on sh:m-bas:d payments settled (1 the form of shanes and is measuned a1 fair valua on the date the benefils are granted. The fair value of the pian Is recognized in tha Statement of
Profit or Loss aver the perod of the ban, g to of what will be implemented during this grant peried, This plan ended at the end of 2018,

25.Non-contrelling Interest

Total
Capital l::::‘:: ::i;t: Reserves Legal reserve ?n::::le;l ce:::::‘:‘k Retalued earnings December 51, 2024  December 11, 2023
Reserve
Balanceat | January 50213 18 123 T28 956 76 523 6218 - 30 395 1 362 958 12319
Net prodit/ Loss for the year - - - - - - 131772 131172 {79 199
Foreign cmrency translation results - - 401 821 - - - - 401 821 207 253
Capital increase 72 608 - - - - - - 72 608 13223
g;":;::‘in”:rﬁ‘]‘“m“g interests withow 4254 - - - - - 20755 25 009 64757
Transfer to legal reservo - - - 15512 - - (15512) - -
Transfer 1o financial solvency resorve - - - - 23] - (2343 - -
Dividends Distributions - - - - - - (15751) {15 951) {159 017}
Balance at the end of the year 573 993 18223 1130777 52035 8 569 - 143 518 1915417 I 362 9538
The foll table 1zas the Inf: lon ralating to each of the Group's ins that has ial NCI { Alivia) Alalsmia Litijaret farat (GKM6.87%, AL Qalam [GQ ) 32% & GB Company for
fl fal loasa and e ing "S.A.E” 45% A "8.A.E" 15% & Transport Vechlle distrbution "S.A.E™ 6%) , before a any Intra-group sliminations:
Decemnber 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Nan-curent assels 4739 532 3 754 &85
Cumrent assats 20 151 830 5062 393
Non-curment liabilitics (2 580 201) (2 995 939}
Current liabilities (15 057 364) {4 124 322)
Net asstes attributable to NCI ___1aro8i1 1 204 956
Revenus 14 754 420 §511 243
Net Brofil for the year 625097 692 634
Net profit year attelbutable to NCI 102373 T emom

25
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic
GB Corp (S.A.E}
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024

{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unfess otherwise stated)
26-Capital Management
The group's management aims to manage capital to maintain the group's ability to continue in a way that achisves a return for sharsholdaers and provides benefits to

other staksholders that use the financial statements. Providing and maintaining the best capital structure for the purpose of reducing the cost of capital. To maintain
the best capital structure, management changes the value of dividends paid to shareholders, reduces capital, or issues new shares for the group's capital,

The Group's managament monitors the capital structure using the ratio of net loans fo total capital, Net lbans are the total of loans, advances and notes
payable minus cash. .The total capital rapresents the company's total equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, in addition to net loans.

Nat debt to equity ratio at December 31, 2024 and Decamber 31, 2023 as follows:

Total loans and notes payables
December 31, 2024 December 31,2023 Restated

Loans, borrowings and overdratts 22 408 701 12 237 670
Short-term notes payable - suppliers 383 524 387 663
Total loans and notes payables 22 792 225 12 625 333
Less:

Cash and cash equivalent {7 420 BG6) {4 504 238)
Letters of credit - [ 442 262)
Letters of guarantee - [ 208 238)
Net debt 15 371 359 7470 595
Shareholders’ equity 25 438 502 19 792 950
Net debt to equity ratio 0.60 0.38

27-Loans, horrowings and overdrafts

December 31, 2024 December 31,2023
Current portion Long-term portion Total Current portion Long-term portion Total
Banks overdraft 8 660 891 - 8 660 §91 5 788 806 - 5 788 806
Loans 6911975 6 835 835 13 747 310 1 885 690 4 563 174 6 448 864
Total 15 572 866 6 835 835 22 408 701 7 674 496 4563174 12 237 670
A.Banks overdratt
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Less than one year 8 660 891 5788 806

$ 660 891 § 788 806
B.Loans

The group (the non-banking financial services sector} obtained medium and long-term bank loans for the purpose of financing car sales contracts and
operational and financial lease contracts. The repayment period for these loans reached 5 years for each operation financed by guaranteed by the financial
rights of the contracts concluded and arising from those contracts towards the clients of the group companies

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Less than one year 6911 975 1 885 690
Move than one year and less than five years 6 835 835 4563174
13 747 810 6 448 864

Guarantees
GB Corporation Company {The Holding Company) has issued promissory notes to the sake of the Company as a guarantee at the banks either the operating in Egypt or outside of Egypt.

Interest Rate
The average interest rate of the current EGP and USD loans & borrowings is amounted to 8.4% and 29.19% respectively , the interest rate of EGP and USD 19.79% and 8.3%
respectively during 2023.

«26=
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GB Carp {S.AE)

Nutas ta tha censalldated financial statsmanta far the financial yaar ended Dacember 31, 2024

In the rotes alf amounts are shown In Thousand Egyptian Pounds unlsss olherwise staled

28-Trade payables dod ather credit balances

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Trade paysbles 14 500 562 3249 473

Otlier credit balanees 189 040 358 992

Advances from customers 622 868 221 168

Tax Authority 59 838 13912

Valuc added tax 213 531 b asem

Acerued expenses 2251380 1307 251

Accrued interest expezse 223 189 52 266

Retetion from others 135313 89 642

Notes payables 383 529 387 563

Finanes Lease liability 131115 289 794

Dividends payable* 42 579 10317

Dreferred revenues 41 173 134 387

Dueto clients for secoritization 327673 25 129

19 121 835 6 885 905

* The dua dividends wara pald during April 2024,
29-Pravisions Legal Claims Warranty Provision Other Provisions Tatal
Balance at Janaary 1, 2024 Restated T4 124 108 916 235 455 418 495
Provisions fonned during the year 54 751 36 878 310 546 402 175
Pruvisions urilized during the year { 139 { 27 880) {21 178} {49 757
Pravisions no longer required - { 16 983} { 67 820) {84 803)
Effect of ooverment of exchange rates 657 6221 16 925 23 303
Balance at December 31, 2024 128 793 107152 473 928 709 873
Balance at January 1, 3023 62 931 108 536 138 783 360 250
Provisions formed during the year 10 990 36 008 165518 212 516
Provisions utilized during the year - {14 528) (30 554 {45 082)
Pravisions no longer required - (23 419) (91 385) {114 804
Effect of movement of exchangs rates 203 2319 3093 3615
Balance at December 31, 2023 Restated T4 124 108 916 235 455 418 495

Legal claims provision

The amounts shown comprises of gross provisions in respect of legal claims brought against the Group, and menagement opinion afier taking appropriate legal adviee, that the sutcome of thesz legal claims
will not excesd significantly the provision formed 25 at December 31, 2024,

Waeranty Ergvigion
The Group provides warranty on its products and guarantees to sither fix or replace the products that are act working property, and the Group has estimated its warranty provisions to be EGP 128 765 thousard at the

ead of the ycar for expected warranty claims { local componens) in the light of management experience for repair and retums level in previous years the warranty provision includes 3 long-term provision amounted as
at December 31, 2024 EGP 7 070 thousand (at December 31, 2023 EGP 7 070 thousand).

0O 0040g000gan
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Tranalation of eonsolidated financlal satements
Originally lagued in Arablg
GB Corp (S.AE)
Noles to the consofidaled financial statamants for tha fnancial year ended Dacamber 31, 2024
{in the: notey all amounts are shown in Thousand Eqyptian Pounds unless othanwise stalad)

20-Provizlons [Contlrued)

Qfbezprovislons

Cthar provisions ars related 1o claims mxpeciad to be made by a thind party dusfo Lha diapules relaied o I and regarding tha Graup
oparations.

The Informaticn normally published about provisions In has not been diaclosed as the managament ballaves that doing o would

drastically affact the cuicoma of the negctiation with thosa relaled Ihlrd parua noonrding o th pansgraphs no. 91 and 82 of tha EAS 22 and such provisicns are reviewsd
by management on a yearly basls and adjlsted based on (alest p with Ihe |hind party,

30-Flemncis sk management
1= Plasncinl risk factors

The Group's activities expoese it to avariety of inancial risks: market risk (ineluding Torsign currency sxchange rates risk‘price risk, enub flows and falr valus interest rate
risk), cradit Ask and liguidity risk.

Tha Greup's management alma to minimize potentisl adverse efacts of such riska on s Group's financial performancs
A-Markee rak

1Foreign currency exchumge rata ik

The GroLp I3 exposed to forolgn exehangs rats sk adsing from varous currency expoaures, primarily with raspect io the US Dollar and Euro. Forelgn exchange rats risk
arises from future ¢amimanial transacion, assels and labliies In foreign ¢urency vulslanding at the consdlidated balance sheet date, and alse, net lnvestmanis in foreign
entity.

Ehe amendment on the accounting standards

Om March 3, 2024, Lhe Prime Miclster issued Resolution No. 636 amending Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (3) Effects of Charges in Fozeign Exchangs Rates
{Egyprian Accounting Standard Na. 13), Paragraph 57A, which fs effsctive &5 of January 1, 2024,

The Group applicd the amendment ta Pirlmthn $TA of Egyptian Standard No. 13 and conducied an assessment 1o determing whethes there is a difiouliyin
exchanging foreign currencies against the Egyptian pound. Below is a summary ol the results of this evalusion:

The swmmury of the wsaets und lah(tija that deporninated ac USD and Euro ay follow e of 1nt Jausry 2024

The reconnts of fissaclal priition The balasce on 1"January 2024 ‘Tho balaoco ou I"Senusry 204
USD Eure
Meopetary Assets
Cash end cath equivalent 66 705 12%
Monztary s1scts 15 280 1 605
Total Monetary usets 31988 2881 B
Mewgtany Linhllitles
Teade payshlet 0280 1519
Loans & Overdraft 9680 3
Monetary Enbilitiex 3305
Totsl Monctary Liabilities 48265 1912
Surplng 3 e a5y
The &f the diffieuley of exehamgipe 1he foreigy cnrpeyeies

The Group has assesasd that there is 00 difficulty In exchanging assers denominated in forcign ezencies a3 of Jacuary L, 2024, which is the date of application of
Ihe amended Egyptian Acoeing Standard No. 11, and thls assescoenl was made on the basis that assets denomipaled in foeign cumencies can be exchanged st
the Bank at sty tiiise without amy difficulty,

‘The Group has also nssessed that there 1x oo difficulry exchanging foreign d i TiabiLitles, 16 1h ¥ that forei yd inated assety
can be used Lo senle these liabilites.

Tha bakow table shows the of foralgn utthe lidated bal hesl date, p in EGP, as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Asscts Liabilitles Net Net

US Dollars 1442276 16 549 804 (4107 528 11297611

Eures 127 623 {90 005) 137612 32508

Other currencies 5309 (18T 812) {152113) 35659

In view of the global and o i and the risks facing the cauntry, the Govarmment, represenied mainly by the Central Bank of Egypt,

tack & setles of financial measures during the years 2022 and 2023 o contaln the Impact of thasa crises, as well as the Inflationary impact on the Egyplisn sconomy.
Theas measuras ingluded the devaluation of the Egyptian pound egainat forsign exchangs, the raising of tha rate of inlesast an ane-night dapesits and leading, the

of calll and the depoalt of cash an banka. Thia has resulted in a decreasa In the terma of axchange and avallabillty of foreign currency
through official channels, which has resulted in delays In the payment of forelign cummency detits, as weil as higher costs of purchass and re/mburssment,
On & March 2024, the Ceniral Bank of Egypt fasued a declalon to ralze tha ratea of denosil and loan return for ene night by 800 basis palnu to 27.25 per oenl. 28,25 par
cent, raspactively. The &redit and discount rate has also been raited by 800 polnts lo 27.75%, allowing the use of a fiexble exch to ba di
with markat machanixma, This led 1o an Incraase In the average official exchange rats of the Uniied States doltar duzing tha fizst week of the Cenlral Bank dad:dun,
47.55 EGPUSD en 31 March 2024,

2.Price risk
The Groi:p has no investments in @ quated equity security, 80 its not expased to the felr value risk dua to changes In prices

3,Caak flows sid faly valie luterest fals risk

Soms of the group companies are exposed to the risk of changaa in Interest rates due to the exisience of [ong-term kbans. Long-lsrm loans with varlabls Intarast rates.
expose the group to the risk of cash fiowa being affscted by changns In lnterest rales, Long-term (oana with fixad Intarest rales expese tha group to the risk of the falr value
being affacted by changes In Interest rates,

Loans, advances and bank averdrafis wilh varable Inteneat rates amountad to 22,408,700 thousands Eqyptian pounds an

December 31, 2024 (12,237,070 theusand Egyptian pounds on Dacamber 31, 2023). ItIs worth noting that moat of thesa loans and advances {hon-banking financial
aenvces sector) wers used for customer contracts for the purposa of financing car salea contracts and operating and financing fease contracts, and they are transtermed by
guaranlesing the financial rights of the contrasts concluded and erising from thoss contracta towands the customers of the group companiss,

Financial assats that carry fixed intereat rates ara amounted to EGF 2,488,453 thousand as at December 31, 202¢
(EGP 935 023 thousand as at December 31, 2022).

December 31,2024 Decezuber 31, 2023
Time deposits WD 3333346 861 450
Time depasits EUR 66416 -
Timo deposits EQP 68 891 67413
3468 453 231 053
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued {n_Arabic
GB Corp (S.A.E)

Notes to the consclidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

B-Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Due to presence of cash and bank deposits, as well as credit exposures to
wholesalers and retail customers, including outstanding accournts and notes receivables.

For banks, the Group is dealing with the banks which have a high independent rating and banks with a good solvency in the
absence of an independent credit rating.

For suppliers and wholesalers, the Credit Controllers assess the credit quality of the wholesale customer,
taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors,

For individuals the legal arrangements and documents accepted by the customer are minimizing the credit risk fo its lowast
level. Provisions are accounted for doubtful debts on an individual basis.

The ratio of allowance for impairment of accounts and notes receivables to the total debtors is as following:

December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023

Notes and accounts receivables 20 763 676 11 952 717
Debtors and other debit balances 5 868 943 3 273 666
Due from related parties 257 978 434 830
Cash T 422 349 4 506 907
Total 34313 146 20 168 120
Expected credit loss for the above 684 020 513 059
The ratio of the expected credit loss to 1.99% 2.54%
the total debtors

C-Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s management
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines availabie.

2- Fair value estimation

the fair value is assumed to approximate the fair value less than any estimated credit adjusments for financial assets and
financial liabilities with maturity dates of less than one year, and for disclosure purposes, the interest rates available to the
company for similar financial instruments are used to reduce the contractual future cashflow to estimate the fair value of the
financial Habilities

For the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market, The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for the financial instrumenis or similar instruments are used for long-term debt.

Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

-29-
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GB Comp (S.AE)

Translation of consolidated financial statements
Qriginally issued in Arabic

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024

(In the notes all amounts are shown In Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

31-Invesments in subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements for GB Corp. *5.A.E.", include the financial statements which represents the proportion of direct and

indirect investment as follows:

Company Ndme
RG Investment “S.AE.”
International Trade Agencies and Marketing Co. JTAMCO) “S.A.E."
Egyptian Vehicles Manufacturing Co. (Ghabbour Egypt) “S.A.E.”
(habbour Continental Trading Co. (GCT) -Alex “S.AE"”
GB Polo Buses Manufacturing “S.A.E."
Haram Company for Transpertation and trading “3.A.E”
GB Company for Financial Lease and Factoring “5.A.E.”
GB Auto Rental For Transportation “S.A.E.”
GB Allab Company
Masters Automotive Company “S.AE”
Almajmoa Alalamia Litijaret Alsaiarat (GK)
GB Logisties “S.A.E.”
GB Capital holding for Finaneial Investments “S_A.E.”
Gulf Company
Drive for Car Trading "S.A.E.”
Drive for Financing and Non Banking Service “S.A.E"
Ghabbour Al Qalam
GB Global Company
GBR Auto Company
GBR Services Company*
Egypt Auto Mall Company for used car “5,A.E."
GB El Bestan ( Under Liquidation)
Ghabhour General Trade { Under Liquidation)*
Pan African Egypt Company for Oil “8,A.E.”( Under Liquidation)**
Tires & Move Company for Car Services *5.A.E.”
Ready Parts for Automotive Spare Parts “S.A.E.”

Engineering Company for Transportation Maintenance El Mikaneeky “5.A.E™

Egyptian International Mai and cars Manufacturing Company EIAC “S.AE."
GB Finance BV ( Luxembourg previously }***

Salexia L.T.D. Trading (Cyptus)

BBAL Blue Bay Auto Loan Investments Cyprus LTD ( Under Liquidation)

GB Capital Securitization S.A.E.

GB for Import & export

-30-

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
99.99% 99.99%
99.45% 99.45%
99.53% 99.53%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
99.00% 99.00%
55.00% 55.00%
103.00% 100.00%
66.20% 66.20%
75.00% 75.00%
83.33% 83.33%
99.98% 99.58%
99.00% 99.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
68.00% 68.00%
100-00% 100.00%
54.00% 54.00%
48.80% 48.80%
99.00% 9%.00%
60.00% 60.00%
25.00% 25.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
97.671% 97.67%
65.00% 65.00%
100.00% 100.00%

- 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100-00%
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Translation of consalidated financial statements
Originally jssued in Arabic
GB Corp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
{in the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

GB Capital BV#** 100.00% 100.00%
GB Real Estate Mortgage Finance BV 100.00% 100.00%
Transport Vehicle Distribution TVD S.A.E. 94.00% 94.00%
Automobilk $.A.E ' §5.00% 85.00%
GB Finance Lease BV* 40.00% 40.00%
GB Operational Lease BV 100.00% 100.00%
GB Consumer Finance BV 100.00% 100.00%
SME's credit facilities company B.V.(GB Factoring B.V. Previously) 100.00% 100.00%
GB Global BV 100.00% 100.00%
GB Automotive For Trade and Manufaciure 100.00% 100.00%
SME Credit Etenan “S.A.E.” 100.00% 100.00%
International Company For car components “S.A.E.” 51.00% 51.00%
GB Kenya 100.00% 100.00%
GB capital sukuk (8.A.E) 100.00% 100.00%
GB Tanzania 100.00% 100.00%
Superior International For Automative Trading company T1.15% 0.00%
GB Rental for Busses “S.A.E.” 100.00% 0.00%
GB For Technology Solutions 100.00% 0.00%

* These investments are classified as investments in subsidiaries, where the group controls this imvestments , where it is entitled to variable returns during its
participation and its ability to influence returns through its authority over the Invesments.

** The company has been liquidated and the commercial register has been written off in 20 January 2025.

++* During the fourth quarter of 2024, GB Capital holding for Financial Investments “S.A.E.” has merged GB Finance — BV in GB Capital BV , which is
wholly owned by GB Capital holding for Financial Investments “S.A.E.”, and GB Capital BV, which is wholly owned by GB Finance — BV. As a result of
the merger, GB Capital BV became 100% owned by GB Capital holding for Financial Investments “S.A.E.” instead of GB Finance — BV. Also it is worth
mentioning that the merger process was carried out at the book value of all the company's assets.

32- Capital Commitments

The capital contractual expendifure of the Group at the consolidated financial statements date reached
EGP 237 298 thousand at December 31,2024 (EGP 158 965 thousand as at December 31, 2023) represented in the amount to
be paid upen the completion of the new production lines under construction and other branches across the country.

33- Cointaingent Liablities

There are contingent liabilities on the Group represented in letters of guarantee .The balance of the letters of guarantee granted
by the Group in Egyptian Pounds and foreign currencies through its ordinary business, presented in EGP are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Usp 4 285 158 3491 344
EGP 1736 400 143 129
Japanese Yen 195 010 152 993
Euro 326 234 279 223
Crona Swidish - 16 457
-31-
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Orlainglfssped In Arsbic

©B Corp (S.AE)
Notas to th: financtal for the financlal year anded Dacambar 31, 2024
In the notes all amounts are shown In Thousand Eqyptian Pounds urless otherwise statad)

ic

34-Rulated party transactions

The related party transactons are rapresented In tha fransactiona of the company’s sharsholders and tha companiss in which tha esmpany ewns in it and [ or the shareholdars who cwns.

shares drectly or [ndiracty and has the right of control or practice with signifi Infh ovar those P

Dus from related partise o ber 31,2024 D ber 31, 2023

El Bestan Helding . 79435 65 350
SIPAC = Algeria® 37 064 23243
Algematco = Algara® 79 480 48 536
MNT Investment B.V. Group 30320 289 408
Autc Markat Misr - 3345
& Qalam Sharsholders' Current Account 8 141 4948
B Tarlak Shareholders' Cument Account 23038 -
Total 257973 434 330
Expacted credit loss for dua from related partias (204 692) {87 232)
53 286 347 593
Due to rafated partiss D bar 31,2024 D ber 3], 3023
Wahdan Company 2058 68
1058 63

* The balance mpresents tha vakue of batances dus from related paies 10 1he Sraup's companisd In Algua [GBR Auta and GBR Servce} and wikh are hdly impaired {Note 34).

The fodlowing B the natura snd the valuea for the mesl significant tansactions with the relaled- partles during the yesr:

TYranmaction wmount

Related party name Relalon typa Trarsaction nalure Coambar §§, 2024 Dacamber 31, 2025

Ewscutive 50D Membar Board of Directon Top Mansgament Satarad 72807 48158

Marzo Polo Compary Former sharshldar n coa of ot Sarvoss - 933587
subsidiaries.

MNT krvestmont B.V. Group Arsocinte Firancing {231 500 207 851

35- [nvastmant Ip assccliates

Pecamb
Adjustrmania on the gt
Centribution parcantage Dacambar 11, 2023 L2023 Profit far the yaar Ramupplng Adjuximents Addhions Dividends Dacambar 31, 2434
Eaginning batance
Restuled
MHT [rvatiment B.Y, Group:
0% 10 542 356 {230 241} 10312015 149 906 - - 406 130 { 190 168} 1378313
[ Matherinnds) *+
Bodala for Real extale Financing 11.25% [T - 417 10 468 - - - - 3%
Kt for (e kvumnca * ITI0% - - - {11 30000 (251 o - 105 747
10 625 133 {250 241) 10338 492 162641 50 000 [EX:TH 4TTesa [1%0 16) FLELTEE]

*On May 30, 2022, G.B. Capilal Invesiments awarded Kal (formarly Tokyo Marine) a Subordinaled foan of 50 millon Egyptian pounds with ha intenest and no fxed duration which the company
clasifled It os invesiment in associals during the parsd,

+*Gn May 2024, GB Gorp yriup contibuted partally In Lha capitsl inteass sxeculed by MNT Investmant B.V. Graup { Nathariands) which led 1a a diution of GB Corp Group ownership MNT
Invesiment B.Y. Group to reach an cwnershlp &f 47.20% Ouring the 1kird quarter af 2024 MNT B.V (Natharlands), ha acquired (TAM Flnans). 3 leading liatech company In Turkey, agalnal a
payment in cash and the remaining of the paymenl is shares exchange which lead (o urther dikulion S8 Corp ownership 1o resch 44.01% after the acquisiton (Compared 1a 49% in tha previaua
yeur).

36-A Other Investmants with falr valus through Comprshensive Incoms

Gontribution parcentags DOncamber 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Sky realily holding ** T49% 142 261 103 500
Alfana company for ¢ar

29.6% 2000 2000
service
Sealr applcation 17.5% 500 500
Tawhigia .com 10% 500 500

145 261 106 500

*Thesa invesimants have aot been classifiad o assoclated companies dus 1o Lha lack of significant influence on the financial and
aparuting poicy dacilons of these companias,

*+*GB Carp Graup conkributed in Lhe capital Increase execuled by sky

ity holding ta retain the sama awnership of 7.49%.

36-8 Invaatments In falr valus through proflt a7 loszes

SME Credit Elaman *S.A.E." Invetled in "Thamar” (nvesimant fund at tha Qatar Nabona! Bank by purchasing 114 143 unils duing
the year, The unit prica was 700.873 Egyplian pounds, with a lotal cost of 79 999 746 Egyptian pounds.

32
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GB Corp (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year exded December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amouats are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Tranglation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic

37- Income statement according to expense nature

Operating Revenue
Operating Cost
Gross Profit

Other income
Other Expenses

Expected Credit Losses

Gain from investment in assaciate

(Loss) from selling and remeasurement of investments in subsidares
Interest income

Installment sales interest

Bank Expense

Interest expense

Employees salaries & benefits

Selling & Marketing

Rents

Net (Losses} foreign exchangs transaction
Depreciation and Ameriization
Consulting

‘Transportation

Vehicles expense

Governmental Fees & stamps

IT Expense

Other Expenses

Impairment in fixed assets

Insurance

Security Expense

Training employees

Repair/Maintenance Expenses
Administration Supplies

Utilities

Donations & Public relation

Medical Fund

Freight

Net profit for the year before incorae tax

38- Securitized Operations

During the year the group (the non-banking financial services sector) signing into money transfer contracts issued to subsidaries companies and the data on securitization

operations are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 Restated
53 969 539 28 317 230
{43 454 917) (21 432 690)
10 514 622 6 834 540
505 593 523052
{ 240 108) { 337 001}
{115 616} (2659)
867 641 1066 090
- {4 425)
450 578 313 906
34 041 16 784
{ 428 807) (183 609)
(2 453 594} (1112 983)
(2795 546) {1725 406)
(294 927) (145 828)
(219 074) (107 667)
(291 567) (1 499 123)
(353 737) ( 230 105)
(213 068) (160 160)
( 68 469) (41 051)
( 88 462) (62 627)
( 123 936) ( 109 638)
{ 124 661) {73715}
( 84 651) (111 579)
- (375 486) |
( 53 266) { 29 697)
(40 502) {28 432}
(54 371) (29 310)
{4 684) (2907
( 68 886) {43 932}
(41 474) ( 23 644)
(83 474) (54 917)
(120 119) ( 60 096)
{4 344) {12 041)
3999132 2233934

[

The securitization portfolio consists of financial rights and deferred dues secured by various guarantees in favor of the assignor, which have been transferred to the
assigne. The assignor has transferred financial rights and deferred payment dues for the purpose of issuing securitized bonds, and during 2024 transfer contracts issued
amounted 5 289 597 from the total value 19 378 886 and 4 543 343 from total present value 10 840 394,

0 0o

CC o

C

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Total Value Present Value Total Value Present Value
19 378 886 10 840 394 37704 694 16 660 872
=33
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GB Corp {S.A.E}

Notes to the lidated financlal Tor the {l jal year ended D ber 31,2024

(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwlse stated)

39-Bonds

Drrive finance company has adopted a bond issuance program on several issues under the private plazenent sysiem, which are tradable and non-transferable nominal bonds aver several issues for a period of {3) yaars at an
amount two billion Egyptian pounds only and for a peried of not less than For thirteen months for ¢ach issue, and with an equal rank in the priority of payment and guarantee with the rank of the cuzrent and future long-térm
financial debts of the issuing company with the exception of the legally established privileges and with the exteption of the secured loans mentioned in the infermation memorandum in accordance with the decision of the
Board of Directors of the Finaneial Supervisory Authority No. 54 0£2014 and its amendments And at 2 nominat value of (100) EGP per bond.

The first version of the grogram was launchad at an amount of 700 milion Egyptian pounds on 23/06/2022, as follows:

Part (A): Nominal bonds that are: negatiable, non-convertible to shares and not subject to accelerated call-up for a period of thirteen (13) manths starting from the day following the date of closing the subscription door, with a
value of EGP 300,000,000,000 {enly three hundred millicn Egyptian pounds) with a nominal value of 100 EGP (only ane hundred Egyptian pounds) per bond, it is to be consumed monthly as of the first month fom the date
of closing the subscsiption door with a fixed monthly installment amounting to 23 076 923 Egyptian pounds and with a fixed annual retum of 14%, calculated starting from the day following the date of closing the subscription
doer It is paid monthly, stariing from the first month of the subscription closing date.

Part (B): Nomina] bonds that arc negotiable, non-convertible into shares, and subject to accelerated call-up starting from coupon No. (14} (the 14th month of Issuance) and for a period of sixty (60} months starting from the
next day from the date of closing the subscription door, with a total value of 400,000,000,000 EGP {only four lundred million Egyptian pounds) with & nominal valve of 100 EGP (only one hundred Egyptian pounds) per bond
10 ke amortized over a peried of (60) months starting from the fizst menth of the subscription closing date with a fixed monthly installment 6 866 667 EGP with a fixed annwal zetumn It amounts to 13.5% and is calculated
starting from the day following the closing date of the subscription and is paid monthly, starting from the first month of the closing date.

December 31, 2024
Converted from

Total Value Borrowlng Cost Pald Net
more than cne
Installments Due within a year 356 923 077 1 907 972) 220 534 160 (495 350 165) &0 000 000
Installments Qver a year 343 076 923 {2 542 763} (220 534 160) - 120 000 000
Total 700 000 000 {4 449 335) - (495 550 165) 200 000 000
)
34,
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GB Corp (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of financial statements
" Originally issued in Arabic

40-1 Adjustment on Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023
(Alt amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound)

Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant, equipment and projects under construction

Assets right of use

Intangible ssets

Investment in associate
Investments in fair value through OCI
Long tertn notes receivables
Deferred tax assets

Investment property

Debtors and other debit balances
Subordinated Loan

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Asset Held for sale

Inventories

Accounts and notes receivables
Debtors and other debit balances
Due from related parties

Cash on hand and at banks
‘Total current assets

Total assets

Equity

Tssued and paid in capital
Reserve for financial Solvency
Legal reserve

Other reserves

Private risk reserve - Non banking financial service

Retained Eaming
Net Profit for the year

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Loans

Long term Bond

Long term notes payables and creditors
Right of use Liability

‘Warranty provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities

Loans, borrowings and overdrafis

Due to related parties

Bond

Operating Lease Liabilities

Trade payables and other credit balances
Total current labilities

Tatal liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Before the restatment Adjustments After the restatment
5965 136 5865 736
530 025 - 530 025
350473 184 635 535108
10 625 833 {230 341) 10 395 492
106 500 - 106 500
5382 482 - 5382 482
186 945 - 186 945
50 905 - 90 905
182 642 - 182 642
50 000 - 50 000
23 471 541 {45 706) 23 425 835
855 600 - 855 000
6 366 072 - 6366 072
4042 327 - 4042 327
2 998 442 - 2998 442
347 598 - 347 598
4 504 238 - 4 504 238
19 113 677 - 19 113 677
42 585218 { 45 706) 42 539 512
1085 500 - 1 085 500
7612 - 7612
562 734 - 562 734
4 383 857 184 635 4 568 492
20393 - 20353
11 887 833 ( 230 341) 11 657 492
1 890 727 - 1890 727
19 838 656 ( 45 706) 19 792 950
1 362 958 - 1362 958
21 201 614 { 45 706) 21 155908
4563 174 - 4563 174
200 000 - 200 000
288 593 - 288 593
371314 106 921 478 235
7070 - 7070
333 053 - 333053
5763 204 106 921 5870125
340 596 70 828 411 424
415 090 (70 828) 344 262
7 674 496 - 7674 496
68 - 68
80 0Q0 - 80 000
224 244 (106 921) 117 323
6 885 906 - 6 885 906
15 620 400 { 106 921) 15 513 479
21 383 604 - 21 383 604
42 585218 { 45 706) 42 539 512
_35-
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GB Carp (SAE)
Nates to the Hdated 1L lal far the jal year ended December 31,2024
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)
40-2 Adfustment on Consolidated income statement as of December 31,2023
(All amgunts in theusand Egyptian Pound) Note Before the restatment Ad[ustments After the restatment
Continulng aperations
Qperating reveme {5) 38 317 230 - 28317230
Operating cost (6] (21 432 690) - (21 432 690)
Gross proilt 6 884 540 - & 384 540
Other income (6} 523052 - 523052
Belling and marketing cxpenscs 37 (1 027 83T) - (1027837}
General and administrative expenses (37 (2 402 802) « (2402 802)
Other Expenses (8) {266 173) {70 828) (337001}
Expected Credit Losses &) (2659) - (2659)
Operating results I7ie 121 {70 828) 3637193
Finanee costs (Net) o) (2 465 024) . (2465024)
Investment in associates and Bquidation looses (35) 1056 %0 - 1066090
(4425) - {4425
Net profit far the year before income tax 2304 762 (70 828) 2233934
Income tax {expense) {11-Cy (493 234) 70 528 (422 406)
Netprofit for the year after tax 1811 528 - 1 811 528
Attributable te: 0.40
Sharsholder's of the parent company 13%0 727 - 1890 7127
Non-controlling interests (7% 13%) - {79199
1811328 - 1 311 528
Basic camings per share/ EGP (10) 1682 0.000 1.682
-38-
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arahic
GB Corp (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

41 —Private Reserve ~ Non-Banking Financial Services:

The risk reserve is represented in non-banking financial services, the effects of applying the Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. 47 “Financial Instruments” equivalent to 1% of the assets listed in the risk weights
in accordance with the provisions of the decisions issued by the Board of Directors of the General Authority
for Financial Supervision No. 200 of 2020 on some companies that engage in financial activities

Non-banking activities, and the balance on December 31, 2024, reached 20.3 million Egyptian pounds, and
the balance of this reserve will not be used after applying Standard No. 47 except after obtaining the prior
approval of the FRA.

42 — General Risk Reserve:

A general risk reserve is the difference between applying the expected credit loss model according to
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 for the provision for doubtful debts according to the instructions of
the FRA.

43- Reserve for financial Solvency:

In accordance with Article No. (6) of the Financial Regulatory Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No.
(191) 0f 2018, a general provision is formed at the rate of (1%) of the total regular balances, and a provision
is formed on doubtful balances according to the rates of delay in collection divided into four Levels
according to the degree of regularity in payment for each individual case.

An amount of retained profits or losses is set aside in the solvency risk reserve account within equity, and
the reserve amount is calculated and always adjusted by deduction from or refund to the retained profits or
losses, by the amount of the excess of the impairment provision calculated in accordance with the solvency
standards over the provision for impairment of customers that was recognized in accordance with Egyptian
accounting standards at the date of the financial statements,

Account

(1) The balance of provisions for doubtful financing balances in
accordance with the basis for calculating provisions in Article 198 419
No. (6) of the Financial Regulatory Authority’s Board of Directors
Resolution No. (191) of 2018.

(2) Balance of net impairment of customers as recorded in the books

and according to Egyptian accounting standards (expected credit (175 764)
losses).
The balance of reserve for financial solvency 122 655

44- Assets held for sale:

The balance represents the value of land and buildings obtained from one of the group's
subsidiaries’ customers, as the company's management intends to sell these assets, as there are
negotiations currently underway with serious buyers and the management is committed to
completing the sale process in the short term.

-38.
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in_Arabic
GB Corp (8.AE)

Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

45- Significant accounting policies:

The following accounting policies that are adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are summarized below:
A- Business combination i

-The Group accounts for business combination using the acquisition method when control is transferred
to the Group,

-The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the net assets
acquired.

-Any goodwill that is tested annually for Impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase recognized in
profit or loss immediately.

-Transaction cost is expensed as incurred, except for the issuance of securities related to the issue of
debt or equity securities.

-The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of previously
outstanding relationship. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

-Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to
pay contingent consideration that met the definition of financial instrument is classified as equity, then
it is not re-measured, and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent
consideration is re-measured at fair value at each reporting date and in addition to the changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

1) Subsidiaries
- Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.

- The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its authority over the
entity.

- The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases,

2) Non-controlling interests

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquirer’s recognized net assets at the date of
acquisition.
Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions.

3) Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value
when control is lost.

4) Transaction elimination from consclidation financial statements

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from investment transactions that
are accounted for using equity method with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrcalised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of
the transferred assets.

-39



14

_J

Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

GB Corp (8.AE)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

L

B- Foreign currency
1) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of Group
companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign cumrency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the following items are
recognised in Other comprehensive income.

2) Foreign Operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising

on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in the translation reserve, except
to the extent that the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence
or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.

When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss. Then the partial share must be reclassified.

C- Discontinued operation
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale.

‘When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of profit or
loss and OCI is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the
comparative period.
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

GB Corp (5.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

D) Revenue from customer contracts.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as specified
in the standard:

Step 1: Define the contract(s) with the customer: A contract is defined as a binding agreement between two
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and specifies the criteria that must be met for
each contract.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract
with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount the company expects to receive
in exchange for the transfer of goods or services promised to the customer, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
includes more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that identifies the amount paid that the Company expects to receive
in exchange for performance of obligation.

Step 5: Revenue is recognized when (or whenever) the entity performance an obligation. A company
satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes revenue over a period of time if one of the following
criteria is met:

(a) The Company's performance does not create any asset that has an alternative use to the Company and
the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

(b) The Company creates or enhances an asset that the Customer controls when the asset is created or
enhanced.

(c) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the company's
performance as soon as the company performs.

- For performance obligations, if one of the above conditions is met, revenue is recognized over a period
of time, which represents the time in which the performance obligation is fulfilled. When a company
satisfies a performance obligation by providing the promised services, it creates a contract-based asset on
the amount obtained from the performance. When the amount received from the customer exceeds the
amount of revenue generated, this resulis in advance payments from the customer (a contract obligation).

- Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue and costs can be measured reliably, where appropriate. Costs of obtaining a contract with
the customer

- Under EAS 48, certain additional costs incurred in obtaining a contract with a customer (“contract costs™),
which previously did not qualify for recognition as an asset under any of the other accounting standards,
are deferred in the statement of financial position.

E- Employee benefit

1) Short — term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or implied
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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GB Corp (5.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

2) Share - based payment arrangements

3)

4)

The fair value (at the date of grant) of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements
granted to employees in the form of equity instrument is generally recognised as an expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the maturity period of the awards. The amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related
service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognized is based on the number of grants that meet the related service and
non-market performance conditions at the maturity date.

For share-based payment (equity instrument) grants with non-maturity conditions, the
grant-date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and
there is no outstanding adjustments between expected and actual outcomes.

Defined contribution plans

The Obligations for the defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

The Group pays contributions to the government social insurance system for their employees
based on the rules of the social insurance law no 79 for the year 1975. The employees and
employers contribute under this law with a fixed percentage of wages. The Group's
commitment is limited to the value of their contribution. And the Group’s contribution amount
expensed in profits and losses according to accrual basis.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring. If benefits are
not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the financial statements date, then they
are discounted - before tax — to reflect the time value of money.

F- Finance income and finance costs
The Group’s finance income and finance costs include:

+ interest income.
+ interest expense.
+ Foreign currency gains or loss on financial assets and financial liabilities.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

Interest expense of non-banking financial corporations is represented in cost of sales and other
corporations within finance costs.

G- Income Tax
The recognition of the current tax and deferred tax as income or expense in the profit or loss for the
period, except in cases in which the tax comes from process or recognized event - at the same year
or in a different period - cutside profit or loss, whether in other comprehensive income or in equity
directly or business combination.

1) Current income tax

The recognition of the current tax for the current period and prior periods and that have not been paid as
a liability, but if the taxes have already been paid in the current period and prior periods in excess of the
value payable for these periods, this increase is recognized as an asset. The taxable current liabilities
(assets) for the current period and prior periods measured at expected value paid to (recovered from) the
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic
GB Corp (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

tax authority, using the current tax rates (and tax laws) or in the process to issue in the end of the financial
period. Dividends are subject to tax as part of the current tax. Should only be offset when specific
conditions are met.

2) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

a. Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.,
b. Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not: 1) business combination
2)And not affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
c¢. Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the

extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of such temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used, Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for individual subsidiaries in
the Group. unrealized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date, and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
nsed.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences.

The measurement of deferred tax reflecis the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

H-Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost is determined by the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and an appropriate share of production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

I- Property, plant and equipment

1) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, piant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (inajor components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit
or loss.
The modified cost model was adopted which the cost and accumulated depreciation for some
categories of fixed assets (Machinery and equipment, Vehicles, Furniture and office
equipment, Tools and supplies} are modified using medification factors stated in annex (A) of
EAS no. (13). The increase of net fixed assets which are qualified to modification, were
recognized in other comprehensive income items and was presented as a separate item in
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GB Corp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

equity under the name of "modification surplus of fixed assets”. The realized portion of
modification surplus of fixed assets is transferred to retained earnings or losses in case of
disposal or abandonment of the asset which qualified for modification or usage (depreciation
difference resulting from the adoption of the special accounting treatment).

2) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that a future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

3) Depreciation

4)

3)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the (straight-line method) over their estimated useful lives for
each item and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

Land is not depreciable. Estimated depreciation rates for each type of assets for current and
comparative periods are as follow:

Asset Depreciation rate
Buildings 2%—~4%
Machinery & equipment 10%-20%
Vehicles 20%-25%
Fixtures & Office fumniture 6%-33%
IT infrastructures & Computers 25%
Leasehold improvements 20% - or lease period whichever is less

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Reclassification to investmment property
The reclassification of assets to investment property when the use of a property changes from
owner-occupied to investment property.

Project under construction

The projects under construction recognized at cost. All expenses related to cost includes direct
and necessary to prepare the asset to the state that is ready to use and in the purpose for which it
was acquired for. The asset transferred from projects under construction to fixed assets when it
is completed and ready to use.

J- Intangible assets and goodwill

1) Recognition and measurement
Goodwill:
Arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
Other intangible assets:
Other intangible assets, including patents and trademarks, that are acquired by the
business combination and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
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(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

The right of use of the trademark is amortized on a straight line method over the
expected 30 years of use.

Computer software

Costs associated with developing or maintenance of computer software programmes
when are recogniset as an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated
with identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company and will
probably generate future economic benefits for more than one year, are recognised
as intangible assets.

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software
programmes beyond their original specifications is recognised as a capital
improvement and added to the original cost of the software. Expenditure to acquire
computer software is capitalized and included as an intangible asset. Computer
software costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight-line method over
their useful lives and not exceeding of 3 years.

Knowhow
The amounts paid against knowhow are recognized as intangible assets in case of
knowhow have a finite useful life and amortized over their estimated useful lives.

2) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only as an asset if it is an intangible asset when the
intangible asset will increase the future economic benefits related research and
development projects under construction which is recognized as intangible assets. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

3) Amortization

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the (straight-line method) over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is not amortised.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

K- Investment property

Investment property is property held by the Group for rental or rise in value, or both and initially measured
at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, and recognize in profit and
loss the depreciation expenses and impairment losses.

The depreciation of investment property calculated using (straight-line method) over their estimated useful
lives for each type of investment property, land is not depreciated.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the finanecial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

L - Financial instruments

EAS 47- Financial instruments

EAS 47 — Defined the recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
and some of non-financial items agreements for sale or purchase. This standard replaces EAS 25
financial instruments: presentation and disclosure and EAS 26 financial instruments.

The recognition and measurement and EAS 40 financial instruments disclosures applied on
2021 disclosures.

Financial assets and financial liabilities Classification and measurement

The new standard requires the company to evaluate the classification of financial assets at the
company’s financial statements according to the financial assets cash flow conditions and the
company related business module for financial assets certain category.

EAS 47 has no longer available for sale classification for financial assets. The new standard
contains different requirements for financial assets in debit instruments or equity instruments.

The financial instruments must be classified and measured by one of the following:
Amortized cost, which actual interest rate will be applied or
Fair value through comprehensive profit and loss with subsequent reclassification to profits and
losses when the financial assets sale.
fair value through profit and losses
a. Investments in equity instruments must be classified and measured by one of the following
methods except for those considered and applied owners’ equity accounting.
Fair value through other comprehensive income through subsequent reclassification to profits
and losses statement when financial assets have been sold.
Fair value through profits and losses
b. The company initially continues in measurement of financial assets by using fair value plus
cost of transaction at the initial recognition except the financial assets measured at fair value
through profits and loss in accordance with the current practices.

EAS 47 largely retains the current requirements including those in EAS 26 for financial
liabilities classification and measurements.

The application of EAS 47 didn’t have a significant impact on the company’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivatives.

Impairment:

- The expected credit loss model requires the company to recognize a provision for doubtful debts on all
financial assets carried at amortized cost, as well as debt instruments classified as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income since initial recognition, regardless of whether the loss has
occurred.
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Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
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- Below are the main changes in the group's accounting policy for impairment of financial assets.
When determining a default for the purpose of determining the risk of a default, the entity shall
apply a default definition consistent with Identification used for internal credit risk management
purposes of the relevant financial instrument and theoretical qualitative indicators when
appropriate. However, it is a rebuttable assumption that the default does not occur later when the
financial asset is due for a period of 90 days unless an entity has reasonable and supportive
information to demonstrate that the non-satisfactory default criterion is the most appropriate.
The definition of default used for these purposes is applied consistently to all financial
instruments unless information is available that demonstrates that another default definition is
more appropriate for a particular financial instrument.

A three-stage approach is applied to measure expected credit losses for financial assets listed at
cost.
depreciated and debt instruments designated as Fair value through other comprehensive income.
Assets are transferred through.
The following three stages are based on the change in the quality of credit ratings since initial
recognition for these assets:
- Principle of these assets

e Stage one: 12-month expected credit losses.

For exposures that have not resulted in a quantitative increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a portion of the credit risk is recognized. Lifetime ECL based on the probability of
default occurring over the next 12 months.

o Stage two: Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

For credit exposures that have resulted in a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, but not Credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses are recognized.

o Stage Three: Lifetime Expected Credit Loss Financial assets are credit-impaired when
the One or more events that have a detrimental effect on the estimated fitture cash flows
of those assets Finance.

Measurement

The company applied the simplified approach to calculate expected credit losses for the Auto
& Auto related sector companies due to the absence of an important credit component
associated with their contracts with customers while apply for the non-banking financial
sector companies, the general approach was applied to calculate expected credit losses due to
the presence of an important credit component in contracts with customers of that sector.
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(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Hedge accounting

Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 increases the company's ability to apply hedge
accounting. In addition, it has been Align the requirements of the ‘standard more closely with
the company's risk management policies, so high effectiveness will be measured in the future.

M- Share capital

1) Ordinary Shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction
from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in
accordance with EAS No. (24) “Income Tax”.

2) Repurchase and reissue of ordinary shares (treasury shares)

When shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which
includes directly attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares
are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from equity, When treasury shares
are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity and
the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented within share premium.

N- Provisions
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in book value of the provision resulting from the use of discount rate to determine the
present value, which reflects the passage of time is recognized as finance cost.

1) Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying producis or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a weighting of possible outcomes against their associated
probabilities.

2) Legal Claims

The recognition of the provision for legal claims when there are legal claims against the Group
and after receiving appropriate legal advice.

3) Other Provisions
Provisions are recognized when there are other expected claims from third parties with respect

to the activities of the Group and, according to the latest developments and discussions and
agrecments with those parties.

O- Leases

Egyptian Accounting Standard (49) replaces Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (20) - Accounting
rules and standards related to financial leasing operations.

- The Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (49) “Lease Contracts” provides a single accounting model
for the lessor and the lessee, where the lessee recognizes the Asset right for use of the leased asset
within the company’s assets and also recognizes a liability, which represents the present value of
the unpaid lease payments within the company’s obligations, taking into account that Leases for
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the lessee are not classified as an operating lease or as a finance lease. There are optional
exemptions for short-term and low-value leases.
With regard to the lessor, the lessor must classify each of its lease contracts as either an operating
lease or a finance lease. '
With regard to the finance lease, the lessor must recognize the assets held under a finance lease
contract in the statement of financial position and present them as amounts receivable in an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease contract.
For operating leases, the lessor must recognize lease payments from operating leases as income
either on a straight-line basis or on any other regular basis.
Recognition and measurement
- At the inception of the contract, the company evaluates whether the contract contains lease
arrangements. For such lease arrangements, the company recognizes Asset right for use and lease
contract liabilities, with the exception of short-term lease contracts and low-value asset contracts as
follows:
- On initial recognition, a right-of-use asset is measured as the amount equal to the lease liability,
which is initially measured, adjusted for pre-contract lease payments, initial direct cost, lease
incentives, and the discounted value of the estimated costs of dismantling and removing the asset.
On subsequent measurement, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estimated useful lives of the Asset right for use or the lease term.
- The lease contract obligation is measured at the beginning of the lease contract at the present value
of the unpaid lease payments on that date over the lease period, and the lease payments must be
discounted at the rate using the incremental borrowing prevailing in the country. In general, the
company uses the incremental borrowing rate as a discount rate. The lease liability is then measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
- The Asset right for use and lease liability will be remeasured later in the event of one of the
following events;
* The change in the rental price due to the linkage to the prices or the rate that became effective in
the period.
= Amendments to the lease contract.
* Re-evaluation of the lease term. :
Leases of non-core assets not related to the Company's main operating activities, which are short-
term in nature (less than 12 months including renewal options) and leases of low-value goods are
recognized in the income statement as incurred.
Important judgments in determining the Jease term for contracts that include renewal options
The Company determines the term of the lease as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by the option to extend the lease if such right can reasonably be exercised,
or any periods covered by the option to terminate the lease, if it is certain to be exercised That right.

The Company has the option under some Iease contracts to lease the assets for additional periods,
the Company applies judgment in assessing whether it is certain and reasonably certain to exercise
the option to renew, that is to say, all relevant factors that create an economic incentive to exercise
the renewal, after the commencement date, are taken into account The Company reinstates the lease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects
its ability to exercise (or not ¢xercise) the option to renew (for example) a change in business
strategy.
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(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

P- Segmental reports

A segment is a group of related assets and operations that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other sectors or within a single economic environment subject to risks and
returns that relate to it, other than those relate of segments operating in a different economic
environment. :

Q-Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the Group's financial statements in the year in which they are approved by
the Group’s shareholders.

R-Comparative figures

When necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation
in the current year.

8- New versions and amendments to the Egyptian Accounting Standards:

On 6 March 2023, the Prime Minister's Decree No. (883) of 2023 was issued amending some
provisions of the Egyptian accounting standards, and on 3 March 2024, another decision was
issued by the Prime Minister No. (636) of 2024 amending some other provisions of the Egyptian
accounting standards, and the following is a summary of the most important of those amendments:

New or Summary of the most significant Impact on the Effective date
reissued amendments financial statements
standards
Egyptian 1- These standards were reissued in | The company will not | The amendments
Accounting 2023, allowing the use of revaluation | yse  the revaluation | ©f adding the
Standard No. model when subsequent measurement | 4.1 4 urine  the | OPtion to use the
(10) amended of fixed assets and intangible assets. aang revaluation
2023  "Fixed - This resulted in amendment of the | CWTent period. model are
Assets " and paragraphs related to the use of the effective =~ for
Egyptian revaluation model option in some of financial periods
Accounting the applicable Egyptian Accounting starting om__ or
Standard No. Standards, which are as follows: after January 1,
(23) amended - Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 2023,
2023 (5) "Accounting Policies, Changes in retrospectively,
"Intangible Accounting Estimates and Errors". cumulative
Assets". - Egyptian Accounting Standard No. impact of the
(24) "Income Taxes" preliminary
— Egyptian Accounting Standard No. applying of the
(30) "Interim Financial Reporting" revaluation

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(31) "Impairment of Assets"

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(49) "Leasing Contracts"

2- In accordance with the
amendments made to the Egyptian

model shall be
added to the
revaluation

surplus account
in equity, at the
beginning of the
financial period
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GB Corp (5.AE)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

New or
reissued
stamdards

Summary of the most significant
amendments

Impact on the
financial statements

Effective date

Accounting Standard No. (35)
amended 2023 "Agriculture”,
paragraphs (3), (6) and (37) of
Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(10) "Fixed assets " have been
amended, and paragraphs 22(a),
80(c) and 80(d) have been added to
the same standard, in relation to
agricultural produce harvested.
The Company is not required to
disclose the quantitative information
required under paragraph 28(f) of
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (5)
for the current period, which is the
period of the financial statements in
which the Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. (35) amended 2023 and
Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(10) amended 2023 are applied for the
first time in relation to agricultural
produce harvested. However, the
quantitative information required
under paragraph 28(f) of Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. (5) should
be disclosed for each comparative
period presented.

— The Company may select to measure an

agricultural produce harvested item at
its fair value at the beginning of the
earliest period presented in the financial
statements for the period in which the
Company have been applied the above-
mentioned amendments for the first
time and to use that fair value as its
deemed cost on that date. Any
difference between the previous
carrying amount and the fair value in the
opening balance should be recognized
by adding it to the revaluation surplus
account in equity at the beginning of the
earliest period presented.

in  which the
Company
applies this
model for the
first time.

These
amendments are
effective for
annual financial
periods starting
on or afier

January 1, 2023,

retrospectively,
cumulative

impact of the
preliminary
applying of the
accounting
treatment for
agricnltural
produce
harvested shall
be added to the
balance of
retained
earnings or
losses at the
beginning of the
financial period
in which the
Company
applies this
treatment for
the first time.
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GB Corp (S.AE)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

New or
reissued
standards

Summary of the most significant
amendments

Impact on the
financial statements

Effective date

Egyptian
Accounting
Standard No.
(34) amended
2023

1-This standard was reissued in 2023,

allowing the use fair value model when
subsequent measurement of investment

property.

The Company is
currently assessing the
impact of applying this
new standard during

The amendments
of adding the
option to use the
fair value model
are effective for

"Investment 2-This resulted in amendment of some | the current period. financial periods
property ", paragraphs related to the use of the fair starting om__ or
value model option in some of the after January 1,
applicable  Egyptian  Accounting 2024
Standards, which are as follows: retrospectively,
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. cumulative
(1} "Presentation of Financial impact of the
Statements" preliminary
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. applying of the
(5) "Accounting Policies, Changes fair value model
in Accounting FEstimates and shall be added to
Errors". the balance of
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. retained
(13) "The Effects of Changes in earnings or
Foreign Exchange Rates" losses at the
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. beginning of the
(24) "Income Taxes" financial period
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. in  which the
(30) "Interim Financial Reporting " Company
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. applies this
(31) "Impairment of Assets" madel for the
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No, first time.
(32) "Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations”
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(49} "Leasing Contracts”.
Egyptian I- This standard was reissued in 2023, | The Company doesn’t | The amendments
Accounting allowing the use of revaluation | have this type of asset. | of adding the
Standard No. model when subsequent | Accordingly, this | option to use the
(36) amended measurement of exploration and | change doesn’t have an | revaluation
2023 valuation assets. impact on the financial | model are
"Exploration statement of  the | effective . for
for and _ . Company. financial periods
[uati ¢ 2- The Company applies either the | starting on__ or
E‘{a uatllon ° cost model or the revaluation model gfter January 1.
Minera for exploration and valuation assets, 2023
Resources" . . = .
the evaluation should carried out by retrospectively,
experts specialized in valuation and cumulative
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

GB Corp (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

New or Summary of the most significant Impact on the Effective date
reissued amendments financial statements
standards
registered in a register maintained impact of the
for this purpose at the Ministry of preliminary
Petroleum, and in  the case of applying of the
applying the revaluation model revaluation
(whether the model stated in the model shall be
Egyptian Accounting Standard (10) added to the
"Fixed Assets " or the model stated revaluation
in Egyptian Accounting Standard surplus account
(23) "Intangible Assets"™) should in equity, at the
consistent with the classification of beginning of the
assets in accordance with paragraph financial period
No. (15) of Egyptian Accounting in which the
Standard No. (36) amended 2023. Company
applies this
model for the
first time.
Egyptian This standard was reissued in 2023, The Company doesn’t | These
Accounting where paragraphs (1-5), (8), (24), and | havethis type of asset. | amendments are
Standard No. | (44) were amended and paragraphs | Accordingly, this | effective for
(35) amended | (Sa) - (5¢) and (63) were added, with | change doesn’t have |annual financial
2023 resPect to the accounting treatment of | ., impact on the | periods starting
"Agriculture". agncul!:ural proclluce harvested, financial statement of | on___or _ after
(Egyptian Accounting Standard (10) the C . ¥ 1. 2023
"Fixed assets " was amended © ompany. MEL_——-
accordingly). retrospectively,
cumulative
impact of the
preliminary
applying of the
accounting
treatment for
agricultural
produce
harvested shall be
added to the
balance of
retained
-53.
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GB Corp (S.AE)
Notes to the consolidated inferim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

New or Summary of the most significant Impact on the Effective date
reissued amendments financial statements
standards
earnings or
losses  at the
beginning of the
financial period
in which the
Company
applies this
treatment  for
the first time.
Egyptian 1-This standard determines the principles | The management of Egyptian
Accounting of recognition of insurance contracts | the company will study | Accounting
Standard No. | falling within the scope of this standard, | the impact of the Standard No. (50)
(50) and determines their measurement, | application of the is effective for
“Insurance presentation, and disclosure. The | standard over the next | annual financial
Contracts". objective of the standard is to ensure that | year from the start of | periods starting

the Company provides appropriate
information that truthfully reflects those
contracts. This information provides users
of financial statements with the basis for
assessing the impact of insurance
contracts on the Company’s financial
position, financial performance, and cash
flows.

2-Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(50) replaces and cancels Egyptian
Accounting  Standard No. 37
"Insurance Contracts".

Any reference to Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. (37) in other Egyptian
Accounting Standards to be replaced
by Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(50).

3-The following Egyptian Accounting
Standards have been amended to

the company's
financial period of 1
January of each year.

on or after July
1. 2024, and if the

Egyptian
Accounting
Standard No. (50)
shall be applied
for an earlier
period, the
Company should
disclose that fact.
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GB Corp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statemenis for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic

New or
reissued
standards

Summary of the most significant
amendments

Impact on the

financial statements

Effective date

comply with the requirements of the

application of Egyptian Accounting

Standard No. (50) "Insurance

Contracts", as follows:
- Egyptian
Standard No.
Assets ",
- Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. (23) "Intangible
Assets".

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No.

(34) " Investment property ".

Accounting
(10) "Fixed

Egyptian
Accounting
Standard No.
(17) amended
2024 "Separate
Financial
Statements"

Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(17) "Separate Financial Statements"
was reissued in 2024, adding the option
to use the equity method as described
in Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(18) "Investments in Sister Companies"
when accounting for investments in
associates, sister companies and jointly
controlled companies.

This

standard doesn’t

applicable  for  the

consolidated

financial

statements.

The amendments
shall apply to
financial periods
commencing on
or after January
1, 2024 with early
adaption allowed
retrospectively

by recognizing
the cumulative
impact of the
application of the
equity method by
adding it to the
opening balance
of retained
earnings/losses as
at the beginning
of the financial
period in which
the Company
applies this
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GB Corp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Transiation of consolidated financial statements
Qriginally issued in Arabic

New or Summary of the most significant Impact on the Effective date
reissued amendments financial statements
standards
method for the
first time.
Egyptian This standard was reissued in 2024, to | The company reflect | Amendments
Accounting add how to determine the spot the impact of the regarding the
Standard No. | exchange rate when exchange between financial .standard o1 | determination of
(13) amended | two currencies is difficult and what are the ﬁnancfal statement spot  exchange
o through disclosure No e
2024 "Effects | the conditions that must be met for (29A-1) rate when it is
of changes in | determining the spot exchange rate at difficult to
foreign the measurement date. exchange
exchange between two
rates" An appendix to the application currencies is

guidelines has been added, which
includes guidelines for assessing
whether a currency is exchangeable for
another currency, and guidelines for
applying the required treatments in
case of non-exchangeability.

applicable 1o
financial periods
commencing on
or after January
1, 2024 with early
adaption allowed.
If the entity made
an early
application, this
has to be
disclosed. Entity
shall not be
modifying
comparative
information and
instead should:

* When the entity
reports  foreign
currency
transactions to its
functional
currency, any
effect of the
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GB Corp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

New or
reissued
standards

Summary of the most significant
amendments

Impact on the
financial statements

Effective date

initial application
is recognized as
an adjustment to
the opening
balance retained
earnings/losses
on the date of
initial
application.

* When an entity
uses presentation

currency
different than its
functional
currency or
translates the
results and
balances of
foreign

operation,  the
resulting

differences and
financial position

of a foreign
transaction, any
effect of the

initial application
is recognized as
an adjustment to
the cumulative
translation

adjustment

reserve -
accumulated in
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GB Corp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic

New or Summary of the most significant Impact on the Effective date
reissued amendments financial statements
standards
equity section on
the date of initial
application.
Accounting Carbon Credits Certificates: Are financial | The Company doesn’t | The application
Interpretation | nstruments subject to trading that | have this type of asset. | starts om or after
represent units for reducing greenhouse Accordingly this
No. (2) | gas emissions. Each unit represents one change d - the first of
" ; . L ge doesn’t have
Carbon ton of equivalent carbon dioxide emissions > January 2025,
Reduction and are issued in favor of the reduction ;‘;1 @Ilyact on th?f early adaption is
Certificates" project developer (owner/non-owner), ancial statement o allowed
after approval and verification in | the Company ’

accordance with internationally
recognized standards and methodologies
for reducing carbon emissions, carried out
by verification and certification bodies,
whether local or international, registered
in the list prepared by the Financial
Regulatory Authority “FRA” for this
purpose. Companies can use Carbon
Credits Certificates to meet voluntary
emissions reduction targets to achieve
carbon trading or other targets, which are
traded on the Voluntary Carbon Market
“VCM”. :
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

GB Corp (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated interim financial statements for the financial ended December 31, 2024
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

46 — Significant Events

1- OnJuly 1, 2023, the Iraqi government stopped importing 2&3 wheelers. As a result, on May

19, 2024, Ghabbour Al-Qalam Company (a subsidiary) obtained the exclusive distribution
of JAC and Foton brands in the Republic of Iraq. :

The company filed an arbitration case against the People’s Democratic Republic of Algeria
during the year 2022. These proceedings were initiated as a result of the severe damage and
losses suffered by the company due to the measures taken by the Algerian government
against the company’s business and investments in Algeria through the company’s indirect
shareholding amounting to 54% of the company’s shares GBR Auto and 48.8% of the shares
of GBR Service, which were incorporated in Algeria. It should be noted that the minimum
damage suffered by the company is the loss of its invested capital, amounting to
approximately USD 24 million, excluding foregone profit and interest. And the procedures
of the arbitration case are ongoing.

On October 23, 2024, the Egyptian Council of Ministers issued a decision to add Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. (51) "Financial Statements in the Economics of Hyperinflation",
provided that this standard is applied to the independent and consolidated financial
statements of any company or group whose currency of entry is in hyperinflationary
economies, and this standard also applies to any group that has a foreign operation (including
a branch, subsidiary, sister company, joint venture or other) in hyperinflation economics and
requires This criterion is mainly the adjustment of financial statements prepared in the
currency of an economy with hyperinflation, and this standard is implemented by a decision
of the Prime Minister or his delegate,

In view of the global and domestic economic conditions and the geopolitical risks facing the
country, the Government, represented mainly by the Central Bank of Egypt, took a series of
financial measures during the years 2022 and 2023 to contain the impact of those crises, as
well as the inflationary impact on the Egyptian economy. These measures included the
devaluation of the Egyptian pound against foreign exchange, the raising of the rate of interest
cn one-night deposits and lending, the establishment of ceilings on withdrawals and the
deposit of cash on banks. This has resulted in a decrease in the terms of exchange and
availability of foreign currency through official channels, which has resulted in delays in the
payment of foreign currency debts, as well as higher costs of purchase and reimbursement.

On 6 March 2024, the Central Bank of Egypt issued a decision to raise the rates of deposit
and loan return for one night by 600 basis points to 27.25 per cent, 28.25 per cent,
respectively. The credit and discount rate has also been raised by 600 points to 27.75%,
allowing the use of a flexible exchange rate to be determined in accordance with market
mechanisms. This led to an increase in the average official exchange rate of the United States
dollar during the first week of the Central Bank decision, to 47.55 EGP/USD on 31 March
2024.
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